ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

March 31, 2009
8:08 a. m

Chair
Vice Chair

Bob Lynn,
Paul Seat on,
Carl Gatto
Crai g Johnson
Peggy W/ son
Max G uenberg
Pet e Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 157

"An Act anmending the State Personnel Act to place in the exenpt
service the chief economst and state conptroller in the
Departnment of Revenue and certain professional posi tions
concerning oil and gas wthin the Departnment of Natura
Resources; relating to reenploynment of and benefits for or on
behal f of reenployed retired teachers and public enployees by
providing for an effective date by anending the delayed
effective date for secs. 3, 5, 9, and 12, ch. 57, SLA 2001 and

sec. 19, ch. 50, SLA 2005; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 157(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 157
SHORT TI TLE: REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI REES; EXEMPT SERVI CE

SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR
02/ 27/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 09 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 17/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 17/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 09 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE March 31, 2009



W TNESS REG STER

Nl CKI NEAL, Director

D vi sion of Personnel & Labor Rel ations

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 157.

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 157.

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director

Central O fice

Division of Gl & Gas

Department of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
157.

CAROL COVEAU, Superi ntendent

Anchor age School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 157.

AGNES MORAN
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 157.

HANNAH RAM SKEY

Ket chi kan Charter School (KCS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 157.

DAVI D HULL
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 157.

BARB ANGAI AK, Presi dent

Nat i onal Education Associ ation- Al aska ( NEA- Al aska)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of a sunset during the
heari ng on HB 157.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2009



BRUCE JOHNSON

Menber

Associ ation of Al aska School Boards (AASB)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the extension of
t he sunset during the hearing on HB 157.

PETE FORD, Sout heast Regi onal Manager

Al aska Public Enpl oyees Associ ation (APEA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 157.

KATH E WASSERVMAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 157.

PAT SH ER, Director

Division of Retirenent & Benefits

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
157.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:08: 54 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
neeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
Johnson, W/ son, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to
order. Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 157- REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI REES; EXEMPT SERVI CE

[ Contains brief nmention of SB 126. ]
8:09:18 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 157, "An Act anending the State Personnel Act to place
in the exenpt service the chief econonmist and state conptroller
in the Departnent of Revenue and certain professional positions
concerning oil and gas wthin the Departnent of Natura

Resources; relating to reenploynment of and benefits for or on
behal f of reenployed retired teachers and public enployees by

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2009



providing for an effective date by anending the delayed
effective date for secs. 3, 5, 9, and 12, ch. 57, SLA 2001 and
sec. 19, ch. 50, SLA 2005; and providing for an effective date."

8:09: 50 AM

NI CKI NEAL, Director, D vision of Personnel & Labor Relations

Department of Admnistration, noted that the division had
provi ded responses to the conmttee’ s questions after the | ast
hearing on HB 157 [included in the comm ttee packet].

8:10: 43 AM

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Director, Admnistrative Services D vision,
directed attention to the last two pages of the aforenentioned
responses, which show statistics on retiree positions statew de.
She pointed out that at the beginning of the past sunset period,
there were 227 positions that were hired under the retiree
wai ver, and that nunber has been reduced to 124. She said that
is a good sign that new enployees are being brought into the
system and the retiree positions still existing reflect those
j obs where there are no other applicants that neet the m ni num
gualifications or are able to take those jobs.

8:12: 54 AM

M5. BLAISDELL stated that HB 157 conbines two subjects within
the “personnel Act” for the practical reason of streamining the
hearing process for the legislature, “as well as for public
testinmony.” She noted that the two positions in the Departnent
of Revenue and 23 positions in the Departnment of Natural
Resources are not tied to the retire/rehire provision of the

bill. Ms. Blaisdell related that if the proposed |egislation
does not pass, approximately 124 jobs in schools, loca
governments, courts, and state offices will be left vacant. She
stated, “Wiile these individuals may ... appear to be receiving

additional incone, the retirement income is earned income and
woul d be paid whether they [were] paid in a governnent position
or in the private sector.” She said a retiree can only be
offered a job if there are not other qualified applicants.

MS. BLAISDELL stated that the 23 professional oil and gas
related positions are at risk for high turnover, because the
jobs are tenporary and project-oriented, rather than |ong-term
If a private conpany offers these highly skilled individuals
simlar pay, but with longevity, it would be a challenge for the
state to retain them She said turnover would be unacceptable

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2009



during the state’s efforts in natural gas devel oprment. She
stated, “There is no fiscal inpact to the status change of these
positions, and the risk of losing these professionals is not one
the state should take.”

MS. BLAISDELL warned that the chief econom st position would
remain  vacant because it is unattractive to qualified
candi dates, given its current rate of pay. The person in this
position is responsible for the revenue forecast, and also
reviews a wde variety of fiscal systens as they inpact Al aska s
interest in the world. Leaving the position vacant would put
the state at a disadvantage in maximzing opportunities in a
gl obal econony and place the state at risk for |ost opportunity
it can ill afford.

M5. BLAI SDELL, regarding the state conptroller, said the state
can only hope that the person currently in that position wl
remain, despite the fact that simlar positions in the private
sector are paid 20-30 percent nore. Wth the position turnover
rate averagi ng one per year, she relayed, the learning curve is
reliant on Ilower level staff, and the state cannot “grow
positively in its cash managenment practices.” Longevity in the
position [of conptroller] would be of benefit to the state's
i nvest ments.

MS. BLAI SDELL concluded by urging the comrttee to pass HB 157
so that Alaska can progress in developing a gas pipeline,
conpete in a global econony, educate its children, adequately
staff its courts, and fill other necessary positions that would
ot herwi se be left vacant.

CHAI R LYNN expressed concern that the bill was not heard earlier
so that there would be enough tine to advance it through the
process.

8:17:45 AM

M5. BLAI SDELL stated her belief that HB 157 was introduced at
the beginning of session, but that it has been taking a bit of
time to get bills scheduled for hearing. She noted that there
is a conpanion bill in the Senate which may facilitate the
| egi slation making it through the process.

CHAI R LYNN observed that the bill was introduced on February 27,
2009.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2009



M5. BLAISDELL, in response to Chair Lynn, said she requested a
heari ng on March 3.

8:18:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the Al aska Legislative Report, dated
February 6, 2009, [included in the conmttee packet], notes [on
page 8] that 16 forner state enployees were retired between 1-6
nmont hs before being rehired. He asked if the departnent has a
further breakdown that shows how many of those were rehired
within the first two nonths.

8:19:15 AM

MS5. NEAL responded that Representative Seaton’s staff has nade
that inquiry, and currently the Dvision of Retirement &
Benefits is |ooking for an answer.

8: 20: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that only 80 percent of the
enpl oyers required to do so have forwarded their know edge
transfer plans to the Departnent of Adm nistration. He said he
wants to know if there would be a commtnent from “your
division” to actively pursue the inplenentation of the know edge
transfer plans, which are required by statute from “anyone
enpl oyed under this.”

8:21:36 AM

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director, Central Ofice, Dvision of Ol &
Gas, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), responded that he
can gladly make that comm tnent, but currently none of the staff
inthe Division of Ol & Gas are rehired retirees.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he wants a commtnent from
the comm ssioners of all applicable departnents that that
section of statute would be inplenented.

8:22:19 AM
M5. BLAI SDELL suggested that Ms. Neal, as the person who reviews
all of the know edge transfer plans, could speak specifically to

t hat i ssue.

8:22:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2009



MS5. NEALS assured Representative Seaton that “we do follow up.”
Currently, she reported, only one know edge plan is |acking, and
she indicated that is being addressed. She also assured him
that she would follow up with the Dyvision of Retirement &
Benefits as it oversees the receipt of know edge transfer plans
fromother Public Enployees’ Retirenent System (PERS) enpl oyers.

8:23: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON observed that the aforenentioned report
shows that there were only five that did not have that know edge
transfer plan, and “evidently they ve picked up four of those
since then.”

V5. BLAI SDELL expl ai ned:

The five positions that show that they’'re mssing a
knowl edge transfer plan came from school districts.
And  what Ni cki does with the Departnent of
Adm nistration is she |ooks at every know edge plan
for the state agencies through the executive branch.
So, the school districts would have to follow up and
pursue their own.

8:24: 28 AM

CAROL  COMEAU, Superi nt endent , Anchorage  School District,
testified in support of HB 157. She said the district [rehires
retirees] mnimally, nostly in the area of special education and
rel ated services, and in sonme cases when it cannot find teachers
at the high school I|evel who have the skills to teach higher
| evel math and science. She said these enployees are term nated
at the end of each school year in order to give preference to
qualified applicants [who have not already retired].

M5. COVEAU, in response to a question from Chair Lynn, regarding
whet her she likes the bill as is, stated support of allow ng
districts and other state agencies to “use the tool, but on a
limted basis where we absolutely have to prove that there are
no vi abl e applicants.”

8:.26:32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is pleased to see that the
district 1is wusing that tool judiciously. He noted that

currently there is no limtation on the nunber of applicants.
He asked Ms. Coneau if she would object to a provision that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2009



would limt use of the retire/rehire tool to situations in which
there were three or less qualified applicants.”

8:27:36 AM

M5. COMEAU responded that that limtation would not be onerous
for the Anchorage School District, because it already ensures
that there are zero applicants or, at least, that if there are
one or two, those one or two may have paper credentials but do
not meet the criteria in other ways.

8:28:10 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, regarding a case in which a retiree has to
be rehired, asked how long a period would elapse before the

rehire.

M5. COVEAU responded that the district usually waits until after

the normal hiring season - late spring to right before school
starts — and then asks the rehire to apply for a one-year
contract. She stated, “I think we’'ve nmade it work very

successfully for the last many years.”
8:29: 06 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN noted that his program started in 2001,

and he asked Ms. Coneau what the |ongest period of continual
time is in which a retiree has been rehired.

8:29:33 AM

M5. COVEAU sai d she does not know, but speculated that there are
not many who “continue enpl oynent since the bill began.”

8:29:56 AM

AGNES MORAN told the commttee that she is testifying as a
parent in support of HB 157. She related that her son was
involved in a special education program for six years, and she
knows how inportant it is for the rural schools to have access
to experienced educators who are available locally and have nade
a commtnment to remain in Al aska. Al though the nunber of
participants in the retiree rehire program nay appear snall,
their inpact on the community is |large, she opined. Mny of the
rehired retirees are certified in special education fields and
work not only with students directly, but also with parents,
famlies, and other educators. She said she thinks these people

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2009



are sonetimes viewed as barriers, but for the parents of a child
wi th special needs, these people are viewed as “bridges.” MVs.
Moran indicated that the legislative report shows that nost of
the schools that are listed as having rehired retirees al so have
current openings. She asked the commttee to support the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

8:31: 20 AM

HANNAH RAM SKEY, Ketchi kan Charter School (KCS), said she is a
grandparent of a child in the Ketchikan Charter School. She
noted that materials related to SB 126 show that Ketchi kan had a
custodian who was a rehired retiree. She subsequently
di scovered that about three years ago, that custodian was hired
just until someone else was found to fill the role. She stated

concern that the list may not be conpletely accurate.

M5. RAM SKEY said KCS had a superintendent who retired, KCS was

without a qualified principal, and there were two sessions
during which the school “fell apart.” Ms. Ram skey added
further details. M. Martin, she said, agreed to cone back and
work for the charter school. She relayed that he is at the
| onest rung of the pay scale of admnistrator and does not
accrue benefits toward his retirenent. The school is running

snmoothly; its students are “80 percent proficient across the
board.”

M5. RAM SKEY rel ated another incident in which a woman who was a
readi ng specialist left her job to tend to her husband, who had

cancer. When her husband died, she was rehired in the sane
posi tion. Ms. Ram skey renmarked that there were no other
applicants to take that position. She stated that in snall

towns and places that get so nmuch rain in a year’s tine, it is
often difficult to find qualified applicants; therefore, “we
really need the opportunity to hire the best for our kids.” In
response to Representative Gatto, she said there are 180
students in the Ketchi kan Charter School .

8:34: 31 AM

DAVID HULL said he is a 20-year retiree from the City of
Ket chi kan Fire Departnment and currently works as the fire chief
for the North Tongass Volunteer Fire Departnment through the

Ket chi kan Gateway Borough. He said the bill affects him
personal ly. He warned that as of January 1, 2009, if the
deadline is not extended, the service areas of North Tongass
Fire & EMS [energency nedical service] will be at a distinct

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2009



di sadvantage if there is a need to hire experienced help for the

| eadership role that a chief holds in a fire departnent. He
related that he has held his current position since May 2004 and
would like to stay. He stated, “It should be understood that

the ability for a retiree to be able to hold onto their
retirement benefits and work in a situation like this is akin to
providing a level playing field for the small kids versus the
big kids when it conmes for a conpetition to hire experienced
hel p.”

MR, HULL related that the Ketchikan Airport recently lost a
hi ghly experienced police chief who was in a situation simlar
to M. Hull’s. He noted that the position of police chief at
the airport remains unfilled, and [those in charge of airport
security] have been forced to work with the police departnent of
the City of Ketchikan in order to maintain a police force at the
airport. He opined that the benefit of extending the deadline
probably far outweighs any detrinent. He acknow edged that
there is a fiscal inpact, but asked the commttee to consider
what it would be doing for the smaller departnents that are
trying desperately to conpete for quality help.

MR. HULL, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
estimated that his current rate of pay is $71, 000. He added
that the fire chief for the Cty of Ketchikan, who was recently
hired is paid over $100, 000.

8:37:42 AM

M5. BLAI SDELL, in response to Representative G uenberg, recalled
that he had discussed the definition of “special inquiry”
found in AS 39.25.110(9) - with Kevin Banks, the acting director
of the Division of Gl & Gas. For M. Banks’ benefit, and upon
the suggestion of Representative Guenberg, she read the
[ second] paragraph of a nenorandum from Dan Wayne of Legislative
Legal and Research Services, dated March 31, 2009, [included in
the commttee packet], which read as foll ows:

“Special Inquiry.” The term “special inquiry” is not
defined by state statute or regulation, and in the
time available to respond to your request | am unable

to determne whether it applied uniformy, in the
context of the exenpt service or any other context,
t hroughout the agencies of the state's executive
br anch.

8:39: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that in the aforenentioned
paragraph of the nenorandum the word “s” should appear between

“it” and “applied.” He stated that [the tern] is an issue that
is central to Sections 1 and 2 of the bill, and he opined that
the legislature should define it. He said he wonders whether

the executive branch mght work with the legislature to draft a
definition.

8:40: 39 AM

MS. BLAI SDELL responded that she thinks it would probably be
okay that efforts be made to define the term She clarified
that “special inquiry” applies to Section 1, which relates to a
position within the Departnment of Natural Resources; Section 2
addresses the positions of chi ef econom st and state
conptroller, which do not fall under special inquiry.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like a nessage sent to
the executive branch regarding this issue, and he questioned
whether the definition should be nmade through statute or
regul ati on.

CHAI R LYNN said that would be fine.
8:42:26 AM

BARB ANGAI AK, President, National Education Association-Al aska
(NEA- Al aska), enphasized the inportance of interpretation of

| anguage. She said the term “hard to fill position,” has been
broadened to include all positions in a job category, including
sonme positions that perhaps are not hard to fill, which she said
is problematic. She offered the followng positions as
exanpl es: m ddl e school physical education teacher and high
school counsel or. She expressed her appreciation for M.

Cuono’ s previous statenment that the district is careful to limt
its hiring of retirees only to those positions that are hard to
fill, but she said the problemis that there has been sone abuse
of the rehiring of retirees.

M5. ANGAI AK opined that there is no need to extend the sunset;

if there are people who are retired who can fill a position that
could not be filled otherwi se, those people can conme back into
enpl oynent, “but not draw down on ... a retirenment benefit at
the same tinme.” She concluded that NEA-Al aska would |like to see

t he sunset happen.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Angaiak if she has exanples in
which mnimally qualified applicants were available but the
position was instead given to a rehired retiree.

MB. ANGAI AK answer ed no.
8:45: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said M. Angaiak had remarked that
soneti mes people are brought back for no special reason, when
there are other qualified people around. He said the
af orenenti oned statute is in the public enployee section, it is
not in Title 14. He asked Ms. Angai ak what the legal authority
is that she was di scussing.

M5. ANGAI AK said she had been referencing “the interpretation

generally, of |language,” which she said is wused to rehire
retired teachers and retired adnministrators. The terns
“teacher” and “admnistrator” have been broadened, in sone
cases, to include people who do not represent what NEA-Al aska
believes constitute truly *“hard-to-fill positions,” such as

speci al i sts and speci al education teachers.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he understands what Ms. Angaiak is
saying, but explained that it is difficult to address the issue
through concept alone, wth no particular statute being
suppl i ed.

M5. ANGAI AK clarified that she is talking about the definitions
in statute t hat outline how to defi ne “t eacher” and
“adm ni strator.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like M. Angaiak' s staff
to look at specific statutes wth him He said the wording of
the bill is confusing.

8:48: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that the data
shows there have been 58 [rehired retirees] within the Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS) across the state, which he said seens
like a restricted anpbunt, even though currently there are no
parameters for rehiring retirees in TRS. He asked Ms. Angai ak
if she would support a restriction simlar to that in PERS, such
that there could be no nore than three qualified applicants to
be able to even consider rehiring a retiree. He noted that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2009



restriction would be set “by particular job, not by a broad
category.”

8:50: 20 AM

M5. ANGAI AK responded that [sone kind of restriction] would be
better; however, she would still be opposed to the bill.

8:50: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON observed that out of the many teachers in
the Anchorage School System only 11 [are rehired retirees].
Lower Kuskokwim on the other hand, has 36. She said that
nunber seens high, but she realizes that that district is renote
and she does not know how the living conditions are for the
teachers there. Furthernore, she said she does not know how big
the Lower Kuskokwi m School District is to be able to nake any
conparison to the district in Anchorage. She noted that Ms.
Angai ak had used the term “hard-to-fill,” and she asked her if
she agrees that sonetimes the location of the school would make
a difference.

8:51: 57 AM

M5. ANGAI AK responded that the Lower Kuskokwi m School District
has approximately 3,300 students, about 350 teachers, and has
sonme very renote |ocations. She offered her understandi ng that
“the larger nunmber out of” the 36 rehired retirees in that
school district are located in the hub comunity of Bethel;
therefore, the hardship of Iliving in a rural comunity 1is
m ni mal . She added that she is from Bethel. Ms. Angai ak
concurred that in some cases it is nmore difficult to fill
positions in rural Al aska. However, she said she maintains that
if there are people who wish to continue teaching or being
adm nistrators, they can do that through the regular channels
and not be drawing retirenent at the same tinme they are draw ng
a sal ary.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked, “Are there several that have
continued the whole tinme that this program has been in effect?”

MS. ANGAI AK answered yes.
8:53:29 AM

BRUCE JOHNSON, Menber, Association of Al aska School Boards
(AASB), stated that AASB supports the extension of the sunset

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 31, 2009



proposed in HB 157. M. Johnson related that he is the
principle individual involved in superintendent searches. Most
of the superintendents hired new to Alaska are retired in
anot her state. Currently, in Chevak, two of the three finalists
are retirees — one fromin-state and one from out-of-state. He
said AASB encourages new blood, because it is in the best
interest of the school systenms. He said he senses that “we have
been wusing this judiciously,” and he noted that there 1is
oversight from[the D vision of Retirenent & Benefits].

MR. JOHNSON stated that there are 24-25 school sites in Lower
Kuskokwim four or five of which are located in Bethel, while
the rest are in individual villages. He said those are renote
pl aces. He reported that there is a lot of turnover in that
district; recruitnent is done on an annual basis nationw de.
Furthernore, the district is making remarkable progress “wth
achi evenent”; therefore, the system in place seens to be
produci ng decent results, he noted.

MR, JOHNSON stated that considering the fact that less than 80
positions out of several thousand are “tied up in this,” he
thinks “it’s an appropriate tool.” He encouraged the commttee
to “continue this opportunity as a tool.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Johnson if he is saying he is
relying on what is better for students in his analysis.

MR. JOHNSON responded in the affirmative. He expounded that
AABS does not select superintendents — the local school board
does — but it facilitates the process. In all cases, he noted
AASB asks [applicants] to identify the kinds of skills and
qualifications that they feel meet their particular needs, “and

that references students, in terns of noving this district
forward on behalf of students.” He indicated that AASB asks
[the local school boards] to evaluate files according to that
applicant file. In response to a followup question from

Representative Gatto, M. Johnson said the Lower Kuskokw m
School District is nmaking progress after being “pretty flat for
a long period of tinme.” He added, “And, of course, we know ..
their principle site admnistrators and the teaching staff are
the key ingredients to naking that happen.”

8:57:26 AM
PETE FORD, Southeast Regional Manager, Al aska Public Enpl oyees

Associ ation (APEA), told the commttee that APEA is a primarily
public labor union that represents about 8,000 active enpl oyees

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2009



in the state and close to 2,000 retirees. Approxi mately 2,000
of APEA s nenbers are state enployees in the supervisory and
confidential wunit, while nost of the others are enployees of
local jurisdictions - cities, boroughs, and some in the
uni versity system

MR. FORD stated, “W are opposed to all three portions of this
bill.” Regarding the portion of the bill addressing the
Departnent of Natural Resources, he said APEA has been unable to
get definitive information regarding the positions within DNR
other than the fact that they are highly specialized positions.
He said APEA's best understanding is that while the DNR jobs
i nvolve a high degree of specialization and expertise, they are

policy-inplenmenting not policy-making positions. Because of
that, he said, APEA thinks the position probably ought to be
part of the classified service and not exenpt. M. Ford said

APEA has phil osophical problens with the idea that a job that
has been in existence for at |east four years and is apparently
anticipated to continue in existence for sone tine is regarded
as a tenporary job, rather than a regular or career-type job

He opined that that seens to dimnish both the job and the
people who are providing that service to the state. He
expl ai ned that an on-going service ought to be recognized as a
career-type position.

8:59:28 AM

MR. FORD next addressed the two positions within the Departnent
of Revenue. He noted that the conptroller position is already a
partially exenmpt (PX) position, and the state has sone
substantial degree of flexibility in the way it mght nmanage
t hat position. The [chief econom st] position is a supervisory
unit (SU) position that recently went through reclassification

The position was upgraded to a grade 26. He noted that the
committee was given a reclassification package, which indicates
that nonetary issues are not where the recruiting challenges
exi st. He stated, “It seens to us that that position has been
wel | addressed and ought not be changed in any way. Agai n,
while this is a highly specialized, expert-driven position, it’'s
not, as we understand it, a position that nakes policy, but a
position that inplenents policy and, therefore, a position that
ought to have the protection of civil service and bargaining
unit representation.”

MR FORD conti nued as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 31, 2009



Wth respect to the retiree program again, this is a
program that’s already been in existence for eight
years. That seens like anple tinme ... for the
transition and the change of institutional know edge
to have taken place. And while admttedly, there are
probably sonme occasional exceptions, in general, |
think the cost that’'s being paid by rehire/retirees in
allowing themto receive double paynent for performng

one job is taking a real toll in the state and in the
agencies by the fact that it suppresses the careers of
younger ... enployees and stops them from being able

to move up. A cork is stuck in the bottle.

MR. FORD said he is personally famliar with at |east six people
in the state who have left state enploynent because of the fact
that their careers were being suppressed by a retiree who was
back in the position the retiree previously held. He opined
that rehiring retirees is not the best way to pronote change.

9:02: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said it sounds like part of M. Fords
objection is that retirees should not be "double dipping." She
asked what his opinion would be if the retiree were to cone
back, but was only paid salary, not salary with retirenent.

MR FORD said he thinks that would certainly change the
character of the plan and make it nore palatable, because
neither the nonetary reward nor the opportunity for substantia
di screpancy in pay would exist. He said it would still remain
for the state to address appropriate levels of pay for the
positions and make those adjustnents, which he said would be a
much nore permanent and satisfactory resolution situation.

9:03: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed concern with the phrase “double
pay for doing one job.” He asked M. Ford if he would consider
it double pay for a retiree from another state, who was
receiving a pension fromthat state, to take a job in Al aska.

MR. FORD replied that to sonme degree that is a variation of
“doubl e pay” while not being a direct application that exists
when both the pension and the new job salary are being supplied
by the sanme enployer, which he opined hurts the rest of the
wor kf or ce

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed his confusion. He described a
situation in which one retiree comes from a Lower 48 state and
gets a job in Alaska, while another retiree |eaves Al aska, and
gets a job in that person’s state. He asked, “Does that make a
difference? O should they both stay in their position and then
be criticized, or should they both switch and then not be
criticized?”

MR. FORD responded that the primary difference is that Al aska
has no control over a retiree comng from another state, but has
control within the state and its own enploynent environnment. He
said if the problem is that the position is not appropriately
paid, then that is the correction that needs to be nade.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Ford, during his conments
about the DNR position, neant to say that only the top person in
any departnent is the policy nmaker while everyone else is a
policy inplenenter.

MR. FORD answered yes. He said as he understands the public
enpl oyee relations |law and the classification system within the
state, there is an upper tier of state managenent conprised of
el ected officials and high political appointees who are policy
makers. Certainly those individuals will seek input from their
staff, but the policy decisions will be made by that upper tier.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO posed the idea that the chief econom st may
be at l|east as valuable as the director, because the director
needs to rely on the chief economst’s wsdom to formulate

policy.
9:07: 02 AM

MR. FORD responded that the chief economst is certainly as
val uabl e as the director because he/she is making a significant
contribution; however, that contribution is in the area of
techni cal and expert know edge that is provided to the director,
who t hen devel ops the policy.

9:07:44 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that he had retired from the school system in
California and began working in the school systemin Al aska. He
said, “Wiwen | retired and cane back on board, | lost ny
retirenment pay. The good news was when | finally did retire, |
al nost doubl ed ny retirenent pay.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2009



9:08: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said it seens M. Ford is discrimnating
agai nst Al askans when he differentiates between hiring retirees
fromthe Lower 48 for jobs in Al aska versus hiring retirees from
Al aska.

MR. FORD noted that there are sonme other states that would not
allow a retiree to draw retirement from those states while
wor ki ng for Al aska. Nevada, for exanple, nonitors people’s
income and adjusts their pension based on what they mght be
earni ng even though they are technically retired fromthe state.
He said he supposes there could be some kind of equalizing
national policy. He said he cannot see this as discrimnation
because it is not something over which the state has control
He said it seenms to himthat wthin the state, an undesirable
situation is being created by allowng a person to “use a unique
techni que after having been around awhile” to “ratchet” a job
val ued at a certain amount to three tinmes that anount.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON responded, “The fact that we're here
indicates to ne that we do have control over it.” Asked M.
Ford if he knows of any states other than Nevada that “cap” what
a person can nmake [when retired].

MR. FORD answered that he does not. He added, “My famliarity
with Nevada is about nine years old, but that was the practice
when | was there.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON r esponded:

So, ... Nevada caps your retirenent, and so, ... |if
you were to go to work even outside the public sector,

you retirenment’s capped. It’s counting social
security if you re adjusted by your revenue. I s that

your understandi ng of their systen?

MR. FORD answered that to his understanding that is the nethod
by whi ch Nevada manages its retirenent pension program

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON renar ked, “That seens to nme |ike we m ght
be on to sonething.”

9:11:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to page 2, line 9,
and noted that the |anguage there would exenpt the chief

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2009



econoni st and the state conptroller. He asked M. Ford if he
believes that the state conptroller is properly exenpted and
should be left so, while the chief economst position is
removed, and thus not exenpted.

MR. FORD responded that that would be nore palatable to APEA
He reiterated his understanding that currently the conptroller
is a PX position; therefore, the change that takes place if that
position beconmes exenpt would be less dramatic than if a
cl assified position beconmes exenpt.

REPRESENTATI VE =~ GRUENBERG in response to Representati ve
Johnson’s previous line of questioning, he said it seens that if
the state does not allow local people to be rehired, but does
allow [retirees] from out of state to be rehired, that would be
poor public policy and would di scrimnate agai nst Al askans.

MR. FORD agreed that that would be an undesired result. The
best result, he said, would be to help build the careers of
younger people. He stated, “I’mnot sure that we're well-served
by having folks from other states who aren’t that famliar with
Al aska anyway cone to Al aska and take key positions, but that’'s
usual ly not ny decision to nake.”

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG pondered how it would be possible to
keep those out-of-state retirees from comng to Al aska and
getting hired by the State of Al aska.

9:14:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked M. Ford if he believes that the
retire/rehire exenption is being used as an inducenent to get
certain retirees to come back to their old position wth the
prom se of being able to “double dip,” or if the situation is
just that the State of Alaska is in a difficult position of
having to hire specialized positions with a limted nunber of
gual i fi ed candi dates avail abl e.

MR FORD replied that he is sure there are instances when
recruiting has been difficult, but he also knows that “abuse has
t aken pl ace.”

9:16: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he wused the term discrimnation

intentionally because that is what he believes it is. He asked
M. Ford whether or not he wuld agree that it is the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2009



responsibility of the state and its departnents to put the nost
qualified person in the job, whether or not that person is
pronoted fromw thin, retired from Massachusetts, or an existing
enpl oyee that is going to be serving under the retire/rehire
program

MR FORD affirmed his belief that the nost qualified person
ought to be the person hired.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked M. Ford if that nmeans he would
support a rehired retiree, if that person was the nost
gual i fi ed.

MR. FORD responded as foll ows:

| would initially presune that an individual who
retires is retiring; they' re not posturing thenselves
in order to enrich thenselves at the expense of the
state. And if an individual opts to use that kind of
a technique, it seens to ne that the state needs to
| ook kind of skeptically at that. And | also
recogni ze that qualification is very often a
subj ective judgment, and that sonebody who may | ook
very good on paper or who has sat in the chair for a
very long tine, isn't necessarily the best person to
be holding that position in the future. It seens to
me there ought to be sone integrity, | suppose,
associated wth the decision to retire, and that that
deci si on ought not be a technique for enrichnent.

9:18: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned whether “enrichnment at the
expense of the state” isn’t just what the free market is.

MR. FORD said he does not understand state enploynent as being
part of the free market. The laws of the state provide for
classification of the overwhelmng najority of state positions,
and those classification decisions create a plan within the
state so that all positions — particularly in the classified
service — are appropriately defined and conpensated. He said he
sees it as enrichnment that an individual would “circunvent and
trick the classification systemby retiring and then com ng back
into a classified position, but also having the state pay for
retirement, when in fact the person is not retired and their
career is not concluded.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2009



9:19:43 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Al aska Muinicipal League
(AML), stated that AM. has not taken up the subject of the

proposed bill “on the whole,” but she said she has called the
muni ci palities that rehire retirees and wll echo [M.
Johnson’s] previous remark that “this is a tool that these
comunities have used.” The further off the road system the

more difficult it is for comunities to hire certified people;
it is much easier for those communities if they have the option
to rehire retired people. She said her purpose in testifying is
to speak for those who “use this tool and feel it’'s a very
val uabl e one.” She said she thinks the nunbers show that this
system has not been overused in these communities.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that it is not only enployers that can use
this tool; enployees can “use it as a tool to essentially double
their incone.”

M5. WASSERMAN responded that she thinks Chair Lynn is right, but
challenged him to prevent that from happening “anywhere around
the world.”

9:21: 34 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:21:55 AM

PAT SHI ER, Di rector, Division of Retirement & Benefits,
Depart ment of Adm ni stration (DA , in response to
Representative Seaton’s previous question regarding the timng
of retirees’ return to the work force, noted that one retiree
returned 30 days after retirement and 11 returned after a range
of 30-60 days. In response to a question from Representative
Johnson regarding the proportion of retirees being rehired, he
noted that the division typically processes between 750-1, 100
retirements a year. If all those retirees had returned to work
in the sane year — which is unlikely — “it would be a very snal
per cent age, indeed.”

9:23:39 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that page 8 of the aforenentioned
| egi slative report shows that [60] retirees of the State of

Al aska were rehired, and about one-fifth of those were hired
back within two nonths.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON sai d he appreciates that, but pointed out
that “as a percentage of the total retirees, we’'re tal king about
a mni mal nunber of people.”

9: 24: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, |abeled 26-
GH1035\ A 1, Wayne, 3/28/09, which read as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

Page 1, line 5:
Del ete "by providing for an effective date by"

| nsert :

Page 2, follow ng line 10:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 3. AS 39.35.150(h) is anmended to read:

(h) Notw thstanding (b) of +this section, an
enpl oyer in the executive branch of state governnent
may not allow a nenber hired to fill a position that
requires recruitnment to nmake the election provided in
(b) of this section unless

(1) the enployer conducted an initial
recruitnment for at least 15 days for the position to
be filled by the nenmber nmaking an election under (b)
of this section that resulted in fewer than three
[FIVE] qualified, eligible, and avail able applicants
including the retired nenber; and

(2) the enmployer then conducted an
additional recruitnment and the additional recruitnent
resulted in fewer than three [FIVE] qual i fi ed,
eligible, and available applicants, including the
retired mnmenber; this additional recruitnent period
added to the initial recruitnent period nust be at
| east 30 days total."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Page 2, line 25:

Del ete "secs. 3, 4, 7, and 8"

I nsert "secs. 4, 5, 8, and 9"
Page 2, line 26:

Delete "secs. 3, 4, 7, and 8"
| nsert "secs. 4, 5, 8, and 9"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 31, 2009



9:24: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that he would |ike the nunber of
qual i fying applicants reduced to three before a retiree could be
considered as one of the applicants for rehire, because when
there are five — four others besides the retiree — that is a
| arge pool from which to choose.

9:26: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON initiated the topic of the proposed
deletion of the effective date and Sections 3, 4, 7, and 8. In
response to a request, he yielded to Representative G uenberg.

9:27: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is confused by Amendnment 1. He
remarked that the |anguage in Anendnent 1 proposing to delete
the effective date does not relate to anything else in the
amendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he does not know why the drafter
i ncluded that | anguage in the anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said furthernore all the |anguage in
Amendnent 1 proposing to delete lines 3,4,7, and 8 do not
correspond with the bill.

9:28:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Amendnent 1 to Anmendnent 1,
such that the only remaining |anguage in Amendnent 1 would be
the proposed insertion of Section 3. There being no objection
Amrendnent 1 to Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said that answers his concern
9:29:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how Representative Seaton woul d
f eel about deleting "in the executive branch of state
government” from the remaining |anguage in Anendnent 1, [as
anended] . In response to Representative Johnson, he confirned
that his intent is that Amendnent 1, as anended, would cover
every branch of government, not just the executive branch.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that the intent of the anmendnent is
to cover PERS enployees; it is not intended to cover only the
executive branch. He apol ogi zed for not having time to review
the amendnment before bringing it before the conmttee, and he
said he would not have any objection to taking out the reference
to the executive branch.

9:31: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 2 to Amendnent
1, as anmended, to delete "in the executive branch of state
gover nnment .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative Gatto,
expl ained that Amendnent 2 to Amendnent 1, as anended, would
allow any PERS enployer to rehire retirees, but wunder the
conditions contained within the rest of Anendnent 1, as anended.

CHAI R LYNN announced that there being no objection, Amendnent 2
to Anendnent 1, as anended, was adopt ed.

9:33:12 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON remarked that the 15-day  m ni mum
recruitnment tine is “nothing.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that that mninmum is current
I aw.

9:34: 09 AM

MR. SH ER offered further details regarding that requirenent.
He said the tine can be two, 15-day recruitnents or one, 30-day
recruitnent. He said he was reading that information from an e-
mail from Kathy Lea, the retirenment nmanager with the Division of
Retirement & Benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON reiterated that she thinks 15 days is too
short a period for a full recruitnent.

9:35:34 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he thinks 2 weeks is appropriate,

because “during that period of tine we're doing wthout
i nportant services.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded, “You can get by with not having
people fill a position |longer than you think.”

9:36:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that he thinks the requirenent
exists to prevent sonmeone from retiring on Friday and being
rehired on Mnday. He remarked that there are sone positions
that are so specialized and hard to fill, that if a qualified
person is found, the 15-day requirenent allows that person to be
hi red sooner.

9:37:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered the exanple of a special education
teacher leaving md-year and the inportance of hiring a
repl acenent sooner than |ater.

9:39:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to adopt Amendnment 3 to Anmendnent 1,
whi ch woul d change the nunber of days from 15 to 25.

9:39:52 AM
REPRESENTATI VES GATTO and JOHNSON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it is not necessarily the sanme person
who comes back to the job; there my be another retired
i ndi vidual who is hired. He reiterated that there are few
i ndividuals across the state to whomthis applies. He expressed
hi s hope that the useful ness of the tool is maintained.

9:42: 37 AM

MR SHIER in response to a request for clarification,
reiterated that [Anendnment 1, as previously anended] would
require two, 15-day periods, which would total 30 days m ninmm
In response to a question from Representative G uenberg, he said
the language is sufficiently clear, as it has been used by
enpl oyers who have taken advantage of this tool.

9:44:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if Amendnent 3 to Anmendnent 1
woul d nmake the m ni mum requirenment 40 days.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 31, 2009



MR SH ER offered his interpretation that the mninmm would
still remain at 30 days; the initial period would be 25 days.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN reasoned that that would | eave 5 days in
t he secondary recruitnment in order to reach the 30-day m ni num

9:45: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON w thdrew Amendnent 3 to Amendnent 1, as
anmended.

9:46: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to adopt Amendnent 4 to Anmendnent 1,
as anended, so that the initial recruitnent period would be
changed from 15 days to 20 days and the additional recruitnent
period added to the initial one would total a m ni nrum of 40 days
rat her than 30 days.

9:46: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON obj ect ed.

9:46:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would |ike to hear the
adm ni stration’s opinion.

9:47:10 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:47:15 AMto 9:48: 55 AM

9:48: 59 AM

M5. BLAISDELL said she does not think an extended recruitnent
period woul d pose a problem If the timng was critical, there
may be the possibility to begin recruitnent before the position
is vacated if the person vacating the position gives notice
early enough, she added.

9:49: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON renmoved hi s objection.

9:49: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed. He opined that the |anguage of
“at least 15 days” and “at least 30 days” is sufficient. He
said it is not for the conmttee to decide what works best in a
systemthat is already in use.

9:50: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that this issue could be
di scussed during a break between neetings.

CHAI R LYNN questioned whether the admnistration sees this as a
probl em

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said, “Let’s just vote.”
9:51: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he wants to vote rather than del aying
deci si ons.

9:51:48 AM

A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg,
Petersen, WIson, and Lynn voted in favor of Amendnent 4 to
Amendnent 1, as anended. Representatives Gatto, Johnson

Seaton, voted against it. Therefore, Amendrment 4 to Anmendnent
1, as anended, was adopted.

9:52:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to Amendnent 1
[as amended]. There being no further objection, Arendnent 1, as
anmended, was adopt ed.

9:52:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
which would mrror the intent of the adopted Anendnment 1, as
anended, but would apply to TRS i nstead of PERS.

9:54: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VES JOHNSON and GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

9:55: 49 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VES JOHNSON and WLSON enphasized their concerns
regarding the need for clarity.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG echoed their concern, stating a desire
to have the change that was nade regarding the nunber of days
for recruitnent periods specified by way of an anmendnent to
Conceptual Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that Conceptual Anmendnent 2 is
conceptual, but said he would accept a “friendly anmendnent.”

9:57:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt [Conceptual] Anmendnent 1
to Conceptual Anmendnent 2, which would change Conceptua
Amrendnent 2 to read as foll ows:

Page 1, following |line 8:

Insert new bill sections to read:

"* Section 1. AS 14.20.135(a) is anended to read:

(a) A school district or regional educationa
attendance area that has or anticipates having a
shortage of teachers qualified to teach in a
particular discipline or specialty may, subject to
AS 14.25.043(f) [BY RESOLUTI ON], adopt, by resol ution
a policy that permts the enploynment of retired
teachers who are qualified to teach in the discipline
or specialty in accordance with this section. The
policy nust describe the circunstances that constitute
the shortage. If a shortage of teachers exists as
described in the policy, the district or attendance
area shall notify the admnistrator of the teachers’
retirement system (AS 14.25) that it is hiring retired
teachers under this section

* Sec. 2. AS 14.25.043 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

() Not wi t hstanding (b) and (e) of this section
and AS 14.25.135, an enployer that 1is a school
district or regional educational attendance area may
not allow a nenber hired to fill a position that
requires recruitnent to nake the election provided in
(b) or (e) of this section unless

(1) the enployer conducted an initial
recruitnment for the position for at |east 20 days that
resulted in fewer than three qualified, eligible, and
avai l able applicants, including the retired nenber;
and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 31, 2009



(2) the enpl oyer then conducted an
addi ti onal recruitnent for the position and the
additional recruitnment resulted in fewer than three
gual i fi ed, el i gi bl e, and avai |l abl e appl i cant s,
i ncl udi ng t he retired menber ; t he addi ti ona
recruitment period required by this paragraph added to
the initial recruitnent period in (1) nust total not
fewer than 40 days."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
9:57: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN concl uded then that Conceptual Anendnment
2, if anmended, would afford TRS the sanme tools as Anendnent 1,
as anmended, woul d of fer PERS

9:58:41 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that Conceptual Amendnent 1 to Conceptua
Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

9:59:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON withdrew his objection to Conceptual
Amendmrent 2, [as anmended]. [ Representative Guenberg' s
obj ection was considered w thdrawn.] There being no further

obj ecti on, Conceptual Anendnent 2, as anended, was adopt ed.
9:59:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 3, |abeled 26-
GH1035\ A 3, Wayne, 3/30/09, which read as follows [original
punct uati on provided]:

Page 1, lines 1 - 2:
Del ete "chi ef econom st and"

Page 1, lines 2 - 3:

Del et e "and certain pr of essi onal positions
concerning oil and gas wthin the Departnment of
Nat ural Resources”

Page 1, line 9, through page 2, line 7:
Del ete all material .

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 31, 2009



Page 2, line 9:
Delete "the chi ef econom st and"

Page 2, line 25:
Delete "secs. 3, 4, 7, and 8"
| nsert "secs. 2, 3, 6, and 7"

Page 2, |line 26:
Delete "secs. 3, 4, 7, and 8"
| nsert "secs. 2, 3, 6, and 7"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the only renaining proposed change
to current law would be to nake the state conptroller an exenpt
enpl oyee. He indicated that this proposed anmendnment is in
response to the testinmony of M. Johnson, and he stated his
belief that the state conptroller nakes policy, whereas the
ot her positions do not and should, thus, remain in classified
servi ce.

10: 02: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VES JOHNSQON, SEATON, and GATTO obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he thinks the chief economist is in
a position of recommendi ng policy.

10: 02: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, “I think that in the DNR oi
positions ... they were functioning as a team instead of as a
single, top-down, so | think that those are policy-related
positions.”

10: 02: 46 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg and
Petersen voted in favor of Anmendnent 3. Represent ati ves

Johnson, Seaton, WIson, Gatto, and Lynn voted against it.
Therefore, Amendnent 3 failed by a vote of 2-5.

10: 03: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 4, |abeled 26-
GH1035\ A. 4, Wayne, 3/30/09, which read as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 31, 2009



Page 2, line 18:
Del ete "2013"
| nsert "2010"

Page 2, line 21:
Del ete "2013"
| nsert "2010"

Page 2, line 29:
Del ete "2013"
| nsert "2010"

Page 2, line 31:
Del ete "2013"
| nsert "2010"

10: 03: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON obj ect ed.

10: 03: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  expl ai ned t hat maki ng gener al
exenptions to the policy of the nerit-based classified service
for two years rather than four wll allow the legislature to
revisit the issue sooner to determ ne whether the change was
benefi ci al .

10: 04: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that 2010 is just one year away.
He mai ntai ned his objection.

10: 05: 00 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg and
Pet ersen voted in favor of Anendnent 4. Representatives Seaton
Wl son, Gatto, Johnson, and Lynn voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 4 failed by a vote of 2-5.

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from 10:05:37 AMto 10: 06: 40 AM

10: 06: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG next directed attention to AS
39. 35.150(g), which read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 31, 2009



(g) In accordance with this section, a politica
subdivision or a public organization that has or
anticipates having a shortage of enployees qualified
for particular job classes may, by resolution, adopt a
policy that permts the enploynent of enployees who
retired under AS 39.35.370(a), who have been separated
from enmploynent for at least 30 days, and who are
qualified for particular job <classes. The policy
adopted by resolution nust describe the circunstances
that constitute the shortage. The policy nust require
recruitnment procedures simlar to the procedure
described in (h) of this section for any position
filled by a retired enployee wunder (f) of this
section. If a shortage of qualified enployees exists
as described in the policy, the political subdivision
or t he public or gani zati on shal | notify t he
admnistrator that it is hiring retired nenbers under
(f) of this section and shall provide a copy of the
resolution and policy adopted by the resolution to the
admnistrator of the public enployees' retirenent
system (AS 39. 35).

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendrment 5, which would
change “30” to “180” in AS 39.35.150(q).

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON obj ect ed.

10: 09: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d Amendnent 5 would stop the current
practice, in sone cases, of “the revolving door,” whereby an
enpl oyee retires one day and returns very quickly to the sane
job, thus “double dipping.” He said he believes there should be
a mandatory separation of 180 days. In response to
Representative Johnson, he confirned that Anmendnent 5 would
af fect PERS, not TRS.

10:10: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed concern that a 180-day waiting
period may prohibit hiring sonmeone needed for the continuation
of the construction of the [gas] pipeline. He stated that he
strongly objects to putting artificial barriers in the way of
hiring the best people possible.

10:11: 41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 31, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew Anendnent 5, and urged the
committee to work on the issue.

10: 11: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 157, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 157(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:12
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 31, 2009



